
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 20, 2017 

TO: Pegi Ard, Marshall Delk, David Heald, Laurel Jones, Michael Machado, 
Carlos Palacios, Gun Ruder, Robert Shepherd, Steve Snodgrass 

FROM: Alan Aman, Chief Financial Officer 

STAFF: Eileen Hill, Nancy Machado 

GUEST: Brian Sharpes, Investment Management Consultant, 
UBS Financial Services 

SUBJECT: Finance Committee Meeting 
   Thursday, March 30, 2017 
        8:30 am – 10:00 am  

   Cabrillo College, Sesnon House, Room 1824 
     6500 Soquel Drive, Aptos, CA 95003 

Item Responsibility Page 
A. Regular Open Session

1. Welcome and Call to Order A. Aman
2. Approval of Agenda

We reserve the right to change the order in which agenda 
items are discussed and/or acted upon at this meeting. 
Subject to further action, the agenda for this meeting is to 
be approved as presented. Items may be added to this 
agenda for discussion or action only as permitted by the 
Brown Act. 

A. Aman

Any open session writings distributed either as part of the agenda packet, or within 72 hours 
of a regular meeting, can be viewed at the Foundation office, 6500 Soquel Drive, Aptos, CA 
95003 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

lohood
Typewritten Text
5 - 8

lohood
Typewritten Text
9 - 10

lohood
Typewritten Text
11 - 13

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text
14 - 22

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text
23 - 24

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text
25 - 33

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text
34

lohood
Typewritten Text
35 - 37

lohood
Typewritten Text
38 - 40

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text



   

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

lohood
Typewritten Text
41

lohood
Typewritten Text
42 - 43

lohood
Typewritten Text
44

lohood
Typewritten Text
45

lohood
Typewritten Text
46

lohood
Typewritten Text
47 - 48



   

 

4



 
 
 
 
Cabrillo College Foundation  
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2017 
 
Present: Alan Aman, Pegi Ard, Marshall Delk, Laurel Jones, Michael Machado, 

Carlos Palacios, Gun Ruder, Robert Shepherd and Steve Snodgrass 
 
Absent:  David Heald 
 
Staff:  Eileen Hill, Nancy Machado 
 
Call to Order – A. Aman called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m. 
 
Approval of Agenda    
Motion: MSC:  S. Snodgrass/M. Delk. The committee voted unanimously to 
approve the Finance Committee agenda.  
 
Public Comment Opportunity   
There were no members of the public in attendance. 
 
Approve Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion:  MSC: P. Ard/G. Ruder  to approve Finance Committee Minutes of October 13, 
2016. 
 
The following Finance Committee members voted to approve the minutes, Pegi Ard, 
Marshall Delk, Michael Machado, Carlos Palacios, Gun Ruder and Robert Shepherd. 
 
The following Finance Committee members abstained, Steve Snodgrass. 
 
The following Finance Committee members were absent, David Heald and Laurel 
Jones. 
 
Cabrillo College Report 
A. Aman directed committee members to President Laurel Jones’ newsletter in the 
agenda packet. 
 
Approve Financial Statements 
The Finance Committee received the September 30, 2016 Financial Statements and 
reviewed the October 31, 2016 Financial Statements. 
 
As of October 31, 2016, the total assets were $29M and the ending net assets were 
$28M. The revenue for unrestricted, non-endowed and endowed funds was $1.6M in 

5



Finance Committee Minutes 
January 5, 2017 
Page 2 of 4 
   
total.  Total expenses were $982,827 with a net surplus for all funds of $591,180. The 
total operating revenue was $219,986 and expenses $321,080.  The operating deficit 
was $101,095. Motion:  MSC: M. Machado/P. Ard to accept the September 30, 2016 
and October 31, 2016 Financial Statements 
 
Net Assets and Endowment Chart  
The ending net assets balance as of October 31, 2016 was $28,015,900.  The endowed 
net assets balance was $23,996,799. The endowed historical gifts value was 
$20,307,500, the highest reported by the Cabrillo College Foundation.   
 
Investment Activity Review 
The Cabrillo College Foundation Traditional Endowment pool return on investments 
fiscal year to date as of October 31, 2016 (4 months) is as follows: 

• Actual Return:  4.91% 
• Benchmark Return  4.63% 
• Difference     .28% 

 
The CCF return on investments for the UBS ESG Endowment pool return on 
investments fiscal year to date as of September 30, 2106 (3 months) is as follows: 

• Actual Return:  1.80% 
• Benchmark Return  0.85% 
• Difference     .95% 

 
Rancon Equity Asset Pool, LLC Promissory Note 
Discussion was tabled for the March 30, 2017 Finance Committee meeting.  The 
Finance Committee requested a copy of the promissory note and recent 
correspondence with the Guarantor, Daniel Lee Stephenson.  Staff will investigate 
further. 
 
Insurance RFP Update 
At the October 13, 2016 Finance Committee meeting, it was decided that the Cabrillo 
College Foundation will send a Request for Proposal (RFP) for insurance policies.  The 
current insurance coverages expire on March 5, 2017.  The Finance Committee 
discussed the timeline for the RFP and extending the policies to 7/1/17 (D & O 7/1/18) 
to align with the Cabrillo College Foundation fiscal year.  Motion:  MSC: S. 
Snodgrass/G. Ruder to approve extending the Worker’s Compensation Policy, 
the Property and Liability Policy and the Crime Policy to July 1, 2017 and 
extending the Directors and Officers Policy to July 1, 2018. After further discussion, 
it was decided to proceed with the original RFP timeline and select a broker by 
February 14, 2017. 
 
  

O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Minutes of Meetings\2017\Fin min 1.5.17.docx 

6



Finance Committee Minutes 
January 5, 2017 
Page 3 of 4 
   
Fundraising Report 
Eileen Hill reported the fundraising total from July 1, 2016 to December 15, 2016: 
  
        Secured Gifts                                              $1,000,860 
  Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts   $   750,000 
  Total                                                              $1,750,860 
 
Cabrillo College Foundation Dashboard 
The Cabrillo College Foundation Fundraising dashboard was reviewed.  The Cabrillo 
College Foundation raised $1,750,860 in outright and unbooked revocable planned 
gifts.  This is 58% of the $3,000,000 16-17 fundraising goal.  The cumulative unbooked 
revocable planned gifts total as of December 15, 2016 is $750,000. 
 
2017-18 Budget Timeline 
Cabrillo College Foundation staff will have a draft of the 2017-18 budget ready the 
week of February 20, 2017. The 2017-18 recommended budget will be sent to the 
Finance Committee on March 17, 2017. The Finance Committee will review and make 
recommendations to the Executive Committee by April 13, 2017. The Executive 
Committee will send recommended budget to the Board of Directors by April 27, 
2017. 
 
Committee Calendar & Roster 
A. Aman reviewed the Committee Calendar and Roster. 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nancy Machado 
Accounting & Human Resources Manager 
 

Next Meeting: 
 

 
Cabrillo College, Sesnon House room 1824 

Thursday, March 30, 2017 
 

  

O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Minutes of Meetings\2017\Fin min 1.5.17.docx 

7



Finance Committee Minutes 
January 5, 2017 
Page 4 of 4 
   

 
 
 
2016-17 Finance Committee Attendance Chart 

 
Finance Committee 
Members 

1/14/16 4/6/16 8/11/16 10/13/16 1/5/17 

Alan Aman N/A N/A P P P 
Pegi Ard P P P P P 
Marshall Delk A P P P P 
David Heald A A P A A 
Laurel Jones A P A A P 
Mike Machado P P P P P 

Carlos Palacios P A A P P 
Gun Ruder P P A P P 
Robert Shepherd P P P P P 
Stephen Snodgrass P P A A P 

 
P=Present A=Absent N/A=Not Applicable  Attendance is based on the Finance Committee meeting 
minutes. Please call the Cabrillo College Foundation office if you believe this chart is in error. 

 
 

 
 
Meeting follow-up items: 
 
1.  Send a copy of the Rancon Equity Asset Pool, LLC (REAP) note and any current 

correspondence from Daniel Stephenson to the Finance Committee members. 
 
 
 
                                                

 

O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Minutes of Meetings\2017\Fin min 1.5.17.docx 

8



 

Kudos, College Happenings & In the News: 

PRESIDENT / 
SUPERINTENDENT 

REPORT 

Newsletter Date: 03/01/2017 Volume 5, Issue 3 

 
 March 2017 

Visit us on the  web: 
Www.cabrillo.edu 

Second Harvest…  
Thanks to an online campaign, student 
Senator Tatiana Parrish, and an anonymous 
matching donor, we more than quadrupled 
our giving to Second Harvest Food Bank 
this year, and are being recognized  at their 
Annual Awards Dinner on March 8th! Big 
Step in the amount of meals raised this 
year! 2662 meals last year to 13,284 meals 
this year! Kudos to Kristen Fabos for 
starting the online campaign and to all who 
contributed!  

CongratulaƟons to Cabrillo Men's Basketball for 
winning the Conference Championship (8th Ɵme 
out of last 11 years) and heading to the playoffs! 
CongratulaƟons to Coach Marcopulos, his 
coaching staff and his student athletes. 

Nearly 3,000 4th Grade Students from 
across the county visited Cabrillo 
College Friday, March 3rd. The 
students interacted with teachers in 
mini workshops and other educational 
activities. Thank you to all who helped 
plan, organize, and facilitate this event. 
Outreach to our young students is just 
one tool to help promote college 
awareness and interest.  Students will 
continue to be introduced to 
institutions of higher learning as they 
move through middle and high schools 
with visits to CSUMB and UCSC 
campuses.  

From	the	Cabrillo	Stroke	and		
Disability	Learning	Center		
Voice…	
	Caregivers	are	invited	to	check	out	
“Meet	&	Move”‐‐‐a	walking	buddy	
program	for	family	caregivers.		
linkAges	brochures	are	available	in	
our	ofϐice.	For	more	information.	If	
you	are	interested,	please	sign‐up	
and	register	online	at	
timebank.linkages.org/
meetandmove		
Looking	ahead	in	the	year,	I	want	to	
encourage	you	to	save	May	13th	for	
the	Human	Race	and	ask	various	
folks	to	support	our	Stroke	&	
Disability	Learning	Center	team.		

Sending	love,	Cynthia 

Student Health 
Services Weekly 
Support Groups 

 
 Dealing with 
Anger - Mondays 12-
1pm in 911-B 
 Rainbow Group - 
Tuesdays 1-2pm in 909
-M 
 Mindful Stress 
Group - Wednesdays 
12-1pm in 911-A 
 Expressive Arts 
Group - Thursdays 12
-1pm in 909-M 
 Anxiety Group - 
Thursdays 11am-12pm 
in 909-M 
 Any A Group -  
Wednesdays 12:45 - 
1:45 in 915B 

Continued regional work on one 
of the initiatives housed under 
SSSP, Cabrillo hosted several 
colleges on Friday, February 
24th, to continue the discussion 
regarding Common Assessment 
and it’s implication across113 
community colleges. 

9



Friday March 17th - 8:00am to 11:00pm 
Saturday March 18th - 8:00am to 11:00pm 

Festival Passes available at the door day of show! 
CABRILLO COLLEGE CROCKER THEATER  

 
 
 
 

Thursday March 23rd  @ 4:00pm—Free Event—Samper Recital Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Friday March 24th at 11:30am and 7:00pm—Saturday March 25th at 2:00pm 
Sunday March 26th at 2:00pm—Friday March 31st at 11:30am and 7:00pm 

Saturday April 1st at 2:00pm—Sunday April 2nd at 2:00pm 
CABRILLO COLLEGE CROCKER THEATER  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Gale Antokal: Drawings in Flour and Ash 

March 6 – April 7 
Saturday, March 4 from 5:30-7:00 – artist talk at 6:00pm 

(Closed for Spring Break – March 20-24) 
 

  Discover your passion! 

 

 

Seven Keys 
for Academic 

SUCCESS 
 

1. Study With and 
Get to Know Other 

Students 
 

2. Use a Study 
Schedule and Time 

Management 
Strategies 

 
3. Come to Every 

Class Session 
 

4. Communicate with 
Your Instructor 

 
5. Expect to Use 
Textbooks and 

Readings 
 

6. Set Academic 
Goals 

 
7. Support Services 
Are Here for You - 

Free! 

Coming up… 
 North County Community Forum Thursday, March 9 - 7—8:30 p.m.

—San Lorenzo Valley High School 
 Engineering Abroad 2017 Guatemala Presentations Friday, March 

10 - 12:30 - 2:00 p.m. - Room 806 

March 20th — 24th  

10



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

Fundraising 
• Raised $2,792,886 to date towards $3,000,000 annual goal 

• $318,000! 

• campaign launched 

• Six appeal letters to over 4,000 donors and prospects  
 

• Proposals/Solicitation Meetings to support scholarships, Foster Youth Program, 
4th Grade Experience ($10,000 to $250,000 solicitations) 

• Submitted Community Foundation proposal in collaboration with 5 other 
organizations—Girls In Pajaro Valley Initiative ($450,000 request)  

• Planned Giving: one gift annuity and two planned gifts  

• New Endowed Scholarship for Honors , fire tech, and disabled students 

 

• CalPERS compliance  

• 2017-18 Board Members 

• Employee Handbook update 

 

 

Upcoming Events 

Fundraising 

Executive Director Report: March 20, 2017 

Governance 

•  

• High Achiever Scholarship Ceremony:  May 4, 2017 

• American Dream Scholarship Ceremony:  June 1, 2017 

 

Operations/Communications 

• Onboarding new staff 

• Monthly E-newsletter 

• Website Improvements  

 

11



O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 16-17\2017 03 30\ProjectedFundraisingTotals16-17.doc 12



Cabrillo College Foundation

Fundraising Dashboard 2016-17
 updated 3/20/2017

Outright Gifts and Unbooked 
Revocable Planned Gifts 
Range

Twelve-month      
2016-17 Goal

7-1-16 to 6-30-17
Percent of 

Goal

Transformational Gift $500,000+ $500,000 $750,000 150%

Major Gifts $25,000 to $499,999 $1,500,000 $1,024,595 68%

Gifts $1,000 to $24,999 $750,000 $752,384 100%

Gifts < $1,000 $250,000 $265,907 106%

TOTAL $3,000,000 $2,792,886 93%

Outright Gifts and Unbooked 
Revocable Planned Gifts 
Range

Twelve-month      
2016-17 Goal

7-1-16 to 6-30-17
Percent of 

Goal

Transformational Gift $500,000+ 1 1 100%

Major Gifts $25,000 to $499,999 15 15 100%

Gifts $1,000 to $24,999 300 339 113%

Gifts < $1,000 3,500 2,851 81%

TOTAL 3,816 3,206 84%

Twelve-month      
2016-17 Goal

7-1-16 to 6-30-17
Percent of 

Goal

President's Circle $318,000 $319,158 100%

Annual Fund $93,281 $81,605 87%

Gift Amount 

Number of Gifts

Total cumulative unbooked revocable planned gifts level for all years is $24,958,000 as of 
March 14, 2017

Annual Campaigns

O:\Foundation\Accounting\Reports\Fundraising Reports\Fundraising Dashboard 2016-17.xlsx
13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 16-17\2017 03 30\Packet docs\CCF 

Financial Report Narrative for Finance Comm 3.17.doc  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 16-17\2017 03 30\Packet docs\CCF 

Financial Report Narrative for Finance Comm 3.17.doc 

 

 

 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



 

 

 

 

 

34



Cabrillo College Foundation Budget

Planning Parameters 16-17 to 19-20

 Updated 3/20/2017

Description Projected 2017-18 Projected 2018-19 Projected 2019-20

INCOME:

FEE INCOME - PROPOSAL 
INDIRECT

$16,000 Joyce Foundation $5,000 Other $5,000 Other

FEE INCOME - OTHER CAP 6% and WES 2.2% of total 
employee costs excluding 
Annual Fund and Clerical; 
Grove $10K; Girls in 
Engineering $1,250

CAP 6% and WES 2.2% of total 
employee costs excluding 
Annual Fund and Clerical; 
Grove $10K; Girls in 
Engineering $1,250

CAP 6% and WES 2.2% of total 
employee costs excluding 
Annual Fund and Clerical; 
Grove $10K; Girls in 
Engineering $1,250

FEE INCOME - GIFT 
FACILITATION

Five-year average of the 5% gift 
facilitation fees collected.  

Five-year average of the 5% gift 
facilitation fees collected

Five-year average of the 5% gift 
facilitation fees collected

OPERATIONAL ENDOWMENT 
PAYOUT

4% of daily fund balance for 
previous 12 Trailing Quarters, 
no increase in fund balance 
from gifts (GL #8801, #8859 & 
#8322)

4% of daily fund balance for 
previous 12 Trailing Quarters, 
no increase in fund balance 
from gifts (GL #8801, #8859 & 
#8322)

4% of daily fund balance for 
previous 12 Trailing Quarters, 
no increase in fund balance 
from gifts (GL #8801, #8859 & 
#8322)

ENDOWMENT 
MANAGEMENT FEE

ANNUAL FUND $95,000 $90,000 $90,000 

PRESIDENT'S CIRCLE GIFTS Previous year total plus $3,000 Previous year total plus $3,000 Previous year total plus $3,000

UNRESTRICTED GIFTS 5 year average of unrestricted 
donations minus bequests over 
$10K

5 year average of unrestricted 
donations minus bequests over 
$10K

5 year average of unrestricted 
donations minus bequests over 
$10K

IN KIND REVENUE $16,344 Rent provided by 
Cabrillo College

$16,344 Rent provided by 
Cabrillo College

$16,344 Rent provided by 
Cabrillo College

EXPENSES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 1.0 
FTE

Increase 4.6% on July 1st Increase 4.6% on July 1st Increase 4.6% on July 1st

ACCOUNTING & HUMAN 
RESOURCES MANAGER 1.0 
FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

DEVELOPMENT OFFICER 1.0 
FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

OPERATIONS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 
DIRECTOR 1.0 FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

EVENTS 
COORDINATOR/EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT .49FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

ACCOUNTING & HUMAN 
RESOURCES SPECIALIST .49 
FTE

Increase 0% Increase 0% Increase 0%

FOUNDATION ASSISTANT 
.49 FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT .49 
FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

Assume $2,600,000 (year 
average of operating and 
nonendowed cash balances @ 
1% unless rates change. 

Assume $2,600,000 (3 year 
average operating and 
nonendowed cash balances) @ 
.90% unless rates change.  

Annually begin with 6/30 cash and investments balance (includes Historical Gifts, Accumulated 
Earnings and Available to Spend).  Add assummed $500K projected net increase to endowment 
annually.  Title IV and Title III endowments are not included in projection. 

Assume $2,600,000 (year 
average of operating and 
nonendowed cash balances @ 
1.10% unless rates change. 

INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS

Page 1
O:\Foundation\Accounting\Budget\Budget 2016-17\Planning Parameters 16-17 thru 18-19 2.4.16.xls

3/20/201712:52 PM 35



Cabrillo College Foundation Budget

Planning Parameters 16-17 to 19-20

 Updated 3/20/2017

Description Projected 2017-18 Projected 2018-19 Projected 2019-20

ANNUAL FUND 
COORDINATOR .33 FTE

Increase 0% Increase 0% Increase 0%

ANNUAL FUND CALLERS $32,000 (34% of goal) $31,000 (34% of goal) $31,000 (34% of goal)

ANNUAL FUND CLERK .49 
FTE

Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st Increase 5% on July 1st

CLERICAL ASSISTANTS $0 $0 $0 

PAYROLL TAXES Same percentage rates as 16-
17 and including Social Security 
@ 6.2%

Same percentage rates as 17-
18 and including Social Security 
@ 6.2%

Same percentage rates as 18-
19 and including Social Security 
@ 6.2%

HEALTH BENEFITS-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

16-17 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

17-18 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

18-19 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

HEALTH BENEFITS-
ACCOUNTING & HUMAN 
RESOURCES MANAGER

16-17 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

17-18 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

18-19 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

HEALTH BENEFITS-
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER

16-17 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

17-18 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

18-19 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

HEALTH BENEFITS-
OPERATIONS & MARKETING 
DIRECTOR

16-17 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

17-18 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

18-19 Rates plus 2%. Reflects 
cost sharing.  

HEALTH BENEFITS-RETIREE Projected 2017-18: includes 2% 
increase over prior year cost 
and projects cost monthly 
taking into consideration 
retiree and spouse's age

Projected 2018-19: includes 2% 
increase over prior year cost 
and projects cost monthly 
taking into consideration 
retiree and spouse's age

Projected 2019-20: includes 2% 
increase over prior year cost 
and projects cost monthly 
taking into consideration 
retiree and spouse's age

WORKERS COMP  Based on 2016-17 Budget  + 
1%

 Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
1%

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
1%

LIFE AND DISABILITY 
INSURANCE

Based on 16-17 actual cost for 
each employee + 1%

 Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
1%

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
1%

TRAINING/CONFERENCES Assume $6,000; staff to attend 
CASE, $4,000 other conferences 
and staff training

Assume $6,000; staff to attend 
CASE, $2,000 other conferences 
and staff training

Assume $6,000; staff to attend 
CASE, $2,000 other conferences 
and staff training

PAYROLL PROCESS FEES Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual + $300

Based on 2017-18 Budget + 
$300

Based on 2018-19 Budget + 
$300

RETIREMENT PLAN Based on 6/30/15 CalPERS 
Actuarial: 8.418% for 
EJH/NAM/GW and 6.25% for 
KS/CB plus $11,578 (proj. 
annual unfunded liabilility) + 
$6,310 side fund pay off. First 
payment on side fund was 
7/1/12 and final payment on 
side fund pay off is 6/30/21.

Based on 6/30/15 CalPERS 
Actuarial: 8.40% for 
EJH/NAM/GW and 6.25% for 
KS/CB plus $15,781 (projected 
unfunded liability) + $6,310 
side fund pay off. First payment 
on side fund was 7/1/12 and 
final payment on side fund pay 
off is 6/30/21.

8.382% Projected for 
EJH/NAM/GW and 6.25% for 
KS/CB plus $14,037 + 
(projected unfunded liability) 
$6,310 side fund pay off. First 
payment on side fund was 
7/1/12 and final payment on 
side fund pay off is 6/30/21.

RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS - 
FUTURE

$5,686 per 15-16 actuarial.  
New actuarial will be prepared 
in June 2019.

$5,686 per 15-16 actuarial.  
New actuarial will be prepared 
in June 2019.

$5,686 per 15-16 actuarial.  
New actuarial will be prepared 
in June 2019.

ADVERTISING Based on 2016-17 projected 
actual plus $100 

Based on 2017-18 Budget + 
$100 

Based on 2018-19 Budget + 
$100

PRINTING Based on 16-17 Projected 
Actual plus $500

Based on 17-18 Budget plus 
$500

Based on 18-19 Budget plus 
$500

PHOTOS Based on 2016-17 projected 
actual plus $400 

Based on 2017-18 Budget + 
$400 

Based on 2018-19 Budget + 
$400

Page 2
O:\Foundation\Accounting\Budget\Budget 2016-17\Planning Parameters 16-17 thru 18-19 2.4.16.xls

3/20/201712:52 PM 36



Cabrillo College Foundation Budget

Planning Parameters 16-17 to 19-20

 Updated 3/20/2017

Description Projected 2017-18 Projected 2018-19 Projected 2019-20

CONSULTANTS Graphic Artist $1,800; Web 
Designer $25,000; CalPERS 
Actuarial $1,400; $3,775 
Accounting Consultant; $500 
990 Return;  $7,500 Legal; $500 
Form 5500 Return; Proposal 
Writer $6,500,  Audit $12,130, 
Retiree Benefits actuarial $0

Graphic Artist $2,000; Web 
Designer $0; CalPERS Actuarial 
$1,500; $4,000 Accounting 
Consultant; $600 990 Return;  
$7,500 Legal; $600 Form 5500 
Return; Proposal Writer $4,500;  
Audit $12,930; Retiree Benefits 
actuarial $2,500

Graphic Artist $2,200; Web 
Designer $0; CalPERS Actuarial 
$1600; $4,096 Accounting 
Consultant; $700 990 Return;  
$7,680 Legal; $700 Form 5500 
Return; Proposal Writer $2,880,  
Audit $13,240; Retiree Benefits 
actuarial $0

FOOD $300 Food for Annual Fund 
Callers 

$300 Food for Annual Fund 
Callers 

$300 Food for Annual Fund 
Callers 

FUNDRAISING/EVENTS/PUBL
IC RELATIONS

16-17 Budget plus 5%.  Does 
not include postage or printing 
for invitations to events. 
President's endowment 
supplements $2,000 for Pres. 
Holiday Party

18-19 Budget plus 5%.  Does 
not include postage or printing 
for invitations to events. 
President's endowment 
supplements $2,000 for Pres. 
Holiday Party

19-20 Budget plus 5%.  Does 
not include postage or printing 
for invitations to events. 
President's endowment 
supplements $2,000 for Pres. 
Holiday Party

OFFICE EQUIPMENT Based on 2016-17 projected 
actual plus $80 

Based on 2017-18 Budget  plus 
$80 

Based on 2018/19 Budget plus 
$80 

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE Based on 2016-17 Budget Based on 2016-17 Budget Based on 2016-17 Budget

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE  Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual  + $750

 Based on 2017-18 Projected 
Actual  + $750

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
$750

BOOKS/PUBLICATIONS/MEM
BERSHIPS

 Based on 2016-17 Budget  + 
5%

 Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
5%

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
5%

OFFICE SUPPLIES  Based on 2016-17 Budget  + 
5%

 Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
5%

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
5%

POSTAGE & MAILING 
SERVICE

 Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual  + $100

 Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
$100

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
$100

BOARD EXPENSES  Based on 2016-17 Budget  + 
5%

 Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
5%

 Based on 2018-19 Budget  + 
5%

MISCELLANEOUS Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual plus $50

Based on 2017-18 Budget plus 
$50

Based on 2018-19 Budget plus 
$50

UNCOLLECTIBLE PLEDGES $33,250 which is 35% of Annual 
Fund $95,000  goal 

$31,500 which is 35% of Annual 
Fund $90,000  goal 

$31,500 which is 35% of Annual 
Fund $90,000  goal 

MILEAGE & PARKING Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual plus $50

Based on 2017-18 Budget plus 
$50

Based on 2018-19 Budget plus 
$50

INTERNET SERVICE Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual plus $30

Based on 2017-18 Budget plus 
$30

Based on 2018-19 Budget plus 
$30

IT HOSTING SERVICE Based on 2016-17 Actual plus 
15% (per Blackbaud)

Based on 2017-18 + 15% (per 
Blackbaud)

Based on 2018/19 + 15% (per 
Blackbaud)

BANK CHARGES Based on 2016-17 Projected 
Actual plus $500

Based on 2017-18 Budget plus 
$500

Based on 2018-19 Budget plus 
$500

DIRECTOR/OFFICER 
LIABILITY INS

2017 Actual Cost  Based on 2017-18 Actual  + 4%  Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
4%

LIABILITY AND PROPERTY 
INSURANCE

2017 Actual Cost  Based on 2017-18 Actual  + 4%  Based on 2017-18 Budget  + 
4%

IN KIND EXPENSE $16,344 Rent provided by 
Cabrillo College 

$16,344 Rent provided by 
Cabrillo College 

$16,344 Rent provided by 
Cabrillo College 

Projected Surplus/Deficit 
before use of Reserves $0 ($6,883) ($12,452)

Page 3
O:\Foundation\Accounting\Budget\Budget 2016-17\Planning Parameters 16-17 thru 18-19 2.4.16.xls

3/20/201712:52 PM 37



Cabrillo College Foundation 

Draft 2017-18 to 2019-20 Budget 3/21/2017

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

A I J K L M N

15-16 Actual

16-17 Board 
Approved 

Budget

16-17                  
7 Mos. Actual 

and 5 Mos. 
Projected 

17-18 
Projected 

18-19 
Projected 

19-20 
Projected

REVENUE
INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS $11,735 $13,500 $18,600 $23,400 $26,000 $27,500
FEE INCOME - PROPOSAL INDIRECT $3,107 $21,000 $30,984 $16,000 $5,000 $5,000
FEE INCOME - OTHER $72,124 $72,164 $60,914 $64,268 $66,795 $67,918
FEE INCOME-GIFT FACILITATION $110,233 $62,880 $20,631 $38,833 $41,161 $50,644
OPERATIONAL ENDOWMENTS PAYOUT $14,232 $14,232 $14,030 $14,232 $14,232 $14,232
ENDOWMENT MANAGEMENT FEE $308,975 $339,325 $339,325 $363,879 $371,379 $378,879
ANNUAL FUND $115,389 $93,281 $100,000 $95,000 $90,000 $90,000
PRESIDENT'S CIRCLE GIFTS $318,639 $318,000 $318,000 $321,000 $324,000 $327,000
UNRESTRICTED GIFTS $78,409 $9,543 $40,765 $18,467 $19,621 $22,347
IN KIND REVENUE $16,344 $16,344 $16,344 $16,344 $16,344 $16,344
    TOTAL REVENUE $1,049,187 $960,269 $959,593 $971,423 $974,532 $999,864

EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR $171,600 $168,993 $152,043 $143,837 $150,466 $157,400

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR $98,488 $107,026 $35,874 $0 $0 $0
ACCOUNTING & HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER $64,205 $69,527 $69,527 $73,003 $76,653 $80,486
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER $57,136 $59,094 $47,009 $65,100 $68,355 $71,773
OPERATIONS AND MARKETING DIRECTOR $0 $0 $50,806 $65,100 $68,355 $71,773
EVENTS COORDINATOR/EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT $18,631 $20,074 $19,960 $26,413 $27,734 $29,120
ACCOUNTING & HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST $18,229 $16,718 $22,299 $21,732 $21,732 $21,732
FOUNDATION ASSISTANT $13,891 $13,945 $15,382 $17,879 $18,773 $19,712
ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT $15,869 $17,961 $16,901 $18,856 $19,799 $20,792
ANNUAL FUND COORDINATOR $11,586 $9,809 $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $12,000
ANNUAL FUND CALLERS $29,663 $25,000 $33,000 $32,000 $31,000 $31,000
AF CLERK $13,133 $13,000 $15,693 $17,539 $17,539 $17,539
CLERICAL ASSISTANTS $266 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL SALARIES $512,697 $524,147 $490,494 $493,459 $512,406 $533,327
PAYROLL TAXES $41,828 $41,014 $40,589 $41,268 $41,907 $43,077

O:\Foundation\Accounting\Budget\Budget 2016-17\16-17 to 18-19 Worksheet 2-17.xls 38



Cabrillo College Foundation 

Draft 2017-18 to 2019-20 Budget 3/21/2017

1

A I J K L M N

15-16 Actual

16-17 Board 
Approved 

Budget

16-17                  
7 Mos. Actual 

and 5 Mos. 
Projected 

17-18 
Projected 

18-19 
Projected 

19-20 
Projected

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

HEALTH BENEFITS-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR $23,843 $20,668 $25,345 $29,657 $30,808 $32,168
HEALTH BENEFITS-ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR $27,862 $28,976 $11,986 $0 $0 $0
HEALTH BENEFITS-ACCOUNTING & HR MANAGER $19,873 $20,668 $20,506 $21,111 $21,961 $22,866
HEALTH BENEFITS- DEVELOPMENT OFFICER $27,862 $28,976 $20,841 $29,657 $30,808 $32,168
HEALTH BENEFITS-OPERATIONS AND MARKETING 
DIRECTOR $0 $0 $19,272 $29,657 $30,808 $32,168
HEALTH BENEFITS-RETIREE $0 $0 $7,932 $13,881 $14,400 $7,800
PTO EXPENSE $1,704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
WORKERS COMP $3,741 $4,586 $4,316 $4,836 $5,534 $5,867
LIFE AND DISABILITY $3,925 $4,346 $3,242 $3,405 $3,860 $4,120
TRAINING/CONFERENCES $3,168 $6,000 $6,000 $10,000 $8,000 $8,000
PAYROLL PROCESS FEES $2,510 $2,400 $2,680 $2,980 $3,180 $3,480
RETIREMENT PLAN $12,482 $55,860 $44,431 $45,827 $53,063 $58,641
RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS-FUTURE -$23,784 $12,943 $5,686 $5,686 $5,686 $5,686
    TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS $145,014 $226,437 $212,826 $237,965 $250,015 $256,041
ADVERTISING $599 $1,750 $900 $1,000 $1,100 $1,200
PRINTING $13,105 $20,600 $18,600 $19,100 $19,600 $20,100
PHOTOS $2,600 $3,400 $3,000 $3,400 $3,800 $4,200
CONSULTANTS $28,798 $25,775 $43,222 $61,950 $36,130 $33,225
FOOD $522 $300 $300 $300 $300 $300
FUNDRAISING/EVENTS/PUBLIC RELATIONS $45,375 $49,964 $47,644 $50,026 $52,528 $55,154
OFFICE EQUIPMENT $1,020 $1,100 $1,100 $1,180 $1,260 $1,340
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE $9,576 $9,775 $10,236 $10,986 $11,736 $12,486
BOOKS/PUBLICATIONS/MEMBERSHIPS $1,386 $1,430 $1,430 $1,501 $1,577 $1,655
OFFICE SUPPLIES $7,111 $6,075 $6,075 $6,379 $6,679 $6,979
POSTAGE & MAILING SERVICE $7,821 $15,924 $9,924 $10,023 $10,123 $10,223
BOARD EXPENSES $2,165 $2,066 $2,066 $2,170 $2,278 $2,392
MISCELLANEOUS $359 $300 $400 $450 $500 $550
UNCOLLECTIBLE PLEDGES - 35% $34,742 $33,852 $35,000 $33,250 $31,500 $31,500

O:\Foundation\Accounting\Budget\Budget 2016-17\16-17 to 18-19 Worksheet 2-17.xls 39



Cabrillo College Foundation 

Draft 2017-18 to 2019-20 Budget 3/21/2017

1

A I J K L M N

15-16 Actual

16-17 Board 
Approved 

Budget

16-17                  
7 Mos. Actual 

and 5 Mos. 
Projected 

17-18 
Projected 

18-19 
Projected 

19-20 
Projected

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

BOND CAMPAIGN EXPENSE $193,089 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
COLLEGE SUPPORT $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MILEAGE & PARKING $90 $495 $495 $545 $595 $645
INTERNET SERVICE $1,021 $892 $1,051 $1,081 $1,111 $1,141
IT HOSTING SERVICE $4,002 $4,002 $4,002 $4,602 $5,293 $6,087
BANK CHARGES $5,750 $6,896 $7,000 $7,500 $8,000 $8,500
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEES $0 $0 $49 $0 $0 $0
DIRECTOR/OFFICER LIABILITY INS $4,623 $4,104 $4,414 $4,327 $4,500 $4,725
LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE $3,874 $4,640 $3,985 $3,885 $4,040 $4,202
IN KIND EXPENSE $16,344 $16,344 $16,344 $16,344 $16,344 $16,344
  TOTAL EXPENSES $1,076,683 $960,269 $920,557 $971,423 $981,415 $1,012,316
SURPLUS/DEFICIT -$27,496 $0 $39,036 $0 -$6,883 -$12,452

O:\Foundation\Accounting\Budget\Budget 2016-17\16-17 to 18-19 Worksheet 2-17.xls 40



41



42



43



O:\President\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 16-17\2017 03 30\Hurd 
Tribute  3.17.doc 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  March 20, 2017 
 
TO:   Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Nancy Machado  
 
SUBJECT: Hurd Tribute Fund  
 
Background: 
 
In 2003, a campaign to raise $450,000 was started to raise funds to name the 
Administration Building in honor of John Hurd.  The funds raised were to be used to 

endowment to support the Cabrillo College 
Foundation operations.  The campaign effort raised $155,698 from private donors 
and the endowment was established.   
 
On September 14, 2004 the Cabrillo College Foundation Board of Directors 
approved a motion to fulfill the campaign goal by committing $294,302 in 
unrestricted income.  The intent was to have these funds in the endowment but 
because $294,302 of the funds are Board Designated, they had to be reported with 
the unrestricted funds in a Designated Hurd Tribute fund. 
 
A policy for managing these funds has not been established.  Consequently, the 
funds have been invested very conservatively.  Eileen Hill and Nancy Machado 
spoke with Brian Sharpes about other investment opportunities that allow 
flexibility for the Board to redirect funds through a majority vote.   
 
Brian Sharpes recommended the Cabrillo College Foundation update the 
investment policy to be structured to include the following investment options for 
cash including unrestricted, non-endowed and endowed funds: 

 Long Term Pool 
 Intermediate Pool  no risk 
 Intermediate Pool  medium risk 
 Cash 

 

44



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 20, 2017 

TO: Finance Committee 

FROM:  Nancy Machado 

SUBJECT: Insurance RFP Update 

Background: 
The Finance Committee requested the Foundation send an RFP for insurance 
coverage. Jess Brown, Pegi Ard, and Gun Ruder served as the Ad-Hoc Insurance 
Committee. The Ad-Hoc Insurance Committee reviewed the proposals received and 
approved ANB Insurance as our new Insurance Broker.   

Status:  
ANB Insurance has been added as Broker of Record and all our expiring policies 
have been renewed and extended to 7/1/17 (except for the D & O policy which is 
7/1/18).   Prior to July 1, 2017, ANB will provide staff with recommendations for 
changing carriers if necessary for the General Liability Insurance, Crime Insurance, 
Property Insurance and Umbrella from other companies.  The annual premiums are 
comparable to our previous broker. 

45



 

O:\President\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 16-17\2017 03 
30\Rancon Memo 3.17.doc 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  March 20, 2017 
 
TO:   Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Nancy Machado  
 
SUBJECT: Rancon Equity Asset Pool, LLC promissory note held by the Cabrillo 

College Foundation  
 
Background: 

the Cabrillo College Foundation 
was named as ¼ beneficiary of the Rancon Equity Asset Pool, LLC Series A seven-
year 15% guaranteed promissory note. The note was personally guaranteed by 
Daniel L. Stephenson. The $25,000 note plus interest was not repaid according to 
schedule.   
 
Daniel L. Stephenson of Rancon Equity Asset Pool, LLC offered the Cabrillo College 
Foundation and the other investors $31,250 payable in two installments.  The 
Cabrillo College Foundation accepted the offer.  The first installment of $20,325.20 
was paid January 27, 2017 and the balance of $10,924.80 at 6% interest is due in 
five years.  
 
 
 
 
 

46



 

2016-17 Cabrillo College Foundation Committee Meetings and Events 
Updated 3/2/2017 

Committee meetings are held in the Sesnon House unless otherwise specified. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Tuesdays, 12:00-2:00pm 

New Member Orientation 

September 13, 2016, 10:00-11:45am    
   (Sesnon House Room 1824) 
Walking Tour for Full Board: 

September 13, 2016, 11:00-11:45am 
Meetings: 

September 13, 2016 
November 1, 2016 
February 14, 2017 
May 9, 2017 (Watsonville Center) 

 

AUDIT 
10:00-11:00am 

Sesnon House Room 1824 

October 12, 2016 (Wednesday) 
June 9, 2017 
 

EXECUTIVE 
Thursdays, 9:00-10:00am 

Sesnon House Room 1824 

July 20, 2016 
August 25, 2016 
October 20, 2016 
January 19, 2017 
April 20, 2017 
 

FINANCE & INVESTMENTS 
Thursdays, 8:30-9:30am 

Sesnon House Room 1824 

August 11, 2016 
October 13, 2016 
January 5, 2017 
March 30, 2017 
August 10, 2017 
 
 

CABRILLO ADVANCEMENT 

PROGRAM (CAP) 
Sesnon House Room 1824 

February 9, 2017 10:00  11:00  
May 2017  TBD 
 

FACULTY INNOVATION 

GRANTS 
November 16, 2016  
 

NOMINATING 
Sesnon House Room 1824 

March 1, 2017 9:00  10:00 am 

 

 
August 31, 2016, 5:30-7:30 pm 
October 19, 2016, 8:30  10:30 am 
March 29, 2017 5:30  7:30 pm 
 

SCHOLARSHIP 
TBD 

 

SUCCESS (WES) 
May 12, 2017 11:00  12:00 pm 

 

EXCLUSIVE EVENTS FOR 

RS 
 

Feasting with Faculty 

$10,000+ Members 

April 18, 2017 
5:30  8:30 pm 

 

Lunch with Laurel 

$5,000+ Members 

March 2, 2017 
12:00  1:30 pm 

 

Winemakers Dinner 

Pino Alto, Sesnon House 

$2,500+ Members 

May 11, 2017  
6:00  9:00 pm 

 

Crawfish Boil at the home 

of Andrew & Marilyn Calciano 

$1,500+ Members 

June 22, 2017  
5:30  8:30 pm 

 

Sandy Lydon Historical Tour 

$1,000+ Members 

April 1, 2017 
 

*Cabrillo Stage Play, Beauty and the 

Beast, and PC Reception 

$1,000 Members 

July 21, 2017 
5:30 pm 

Sesnon House 

EVENT DATES 
 

 
 

Samper 4th Grade Experience 

March 3, 2017 
 

Cabrillo Advancement Program 

(CAP) Ceremony 

March 7, 2017 
6:00-8:00 pm 

Crocker Theater 
 

Community Forum  

March 27, 2017 
8:00-9:30 am 

Sesnon House 
 

High Achiever Scholarship 

Ceremony 

May 4, 2017  
3:00 - 5:00pm 
Sesnon House 

 

American Dream Scholarship 

Ceremony 

June 1, 2017  
4:00-5:00 pm 

Samper Recital Hall 

 
 Success 

Signing Party 

September 15, 2017  
11:30 am - 1:30 pm 
Horticulture Center 

 
 Success 

Lunch 

June 22, 2017  
10:00 am - 2:00 pm 

Sesnon House 

 
 

December 1, 2017 
5:30pm 

Sesnon House 

 

47



 
 

2016-17 Cabrillo College Foundation Committee Roster  Updated 3/9/2017 
 

CCF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Alan Aman, CFO 
Carsbia Anderson, Jr., CC VP 

Student Services 
Pegi Ard 
Claire Biancalana 
Carrie Birkhofer 
Jess Brown 
Owen Brown 
Enrique Buelna, Faculty 
   Representative 
Linda Burroughs, Past President 
Ceil Cirillo 
Linda Downing 
Lee Duffus 
David Heald 
Laurel Jones, Asst. Secretary, 
   CC President 
Leola Lapides, Vice President 
Victoria Lewis, VP Admin.  
   Services, Asst. Treasurer 
Kelly Nesheim 
William Ow, Secretary 
Carlos Palacios 
June Padilla Ponce 
Patty Quillin 
Gary Reece, College Trustee 
Maria Esther Rodriguez 
Gun Ruder 
Stephen Snodgrass, President 
Rachael Spencer, College  
   Trustee 
Kathleen Welch, VP of 

Instruction 
 
AUDIT 
Chair: Pegi Ard 
Carrie Birkhofer 
Lee Duffus 
David Heald 
Laurel Jones 
Barbara Scherer 
Norm Schwartz 
Karen Semingson 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 
 
EXECUTIVE 
Alan Aman, CFO 
Pegi Ard 
Claire Biancalana 
Jess Brown 
Owen Brown 
Linda Burroughs, Past President 
David Heald 
Laurel Jones, CC President 
Leola Lapides, Vice President 
William Ow, Secretary 
Steve Snodgrass, President 
Rachael Spencer 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 
 

FINANCE & INVESTMENTS 
CFO: Alan Aman 
Pegi Ard 
Marshall Delk 
David Heald 
Laurel Jones, CC President 
Michael W. Machado 
Carlos Palacios 
Gun Ruder 
Bob Shepherd 
Steve Snodgrass, President 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 
 
CABRILLO ADVANCEMENT 
PROGRAM (CAP) 
Chair: Carrie Birkhofer 
Enrique Buelna 
Sesario Escoto 
Leola Lapides 
Rachel Mayo 
June Padilla Ponce 
Maria Esther Rodriguez 
Pamela Santacroce 
Eva Acosta 
College Advisors: 
    Liz Dominguez  
   Michelle Donohue 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
 
FACULTY GRANTS 
Cherie Barkey 
Owen Brown 
Ceil Cirillo 
Lee Duffus 
Tobin Keller 
Patty Quillin 
David Schwartz 
Lead Staff: Caitlin Bonura 
 
NOMINATING 
Chair: Leola Lapides 
Jess Brown 
Owen Brown 
Linda Burroughs 
William Ow 
Stephen Snodgrass 
Lead Staff: Eileen Hill 
 

 
Co-chairs: 
   Claire Biancalana 
   Mahlon Foote 
Jill Adachi 
Wayne Adachi 
Pegi Ard 
Jim Baker 
Pat Barton 
Mary Blanchard 
Owen Brown 
Ted Burke 
Linda Burroughs  
Ceil Cirillo 
 

Kathy Cowan 
Wally Dale 
Linda Downing 
Lee Duffus 
John Eiskamp 
Jackie Heald 
Hal Hyde 
Kent Imai 
Laurel Jones 
Keith McKenzie 
Fred McPherson 
Kelly Nesheim 
William Ow 
June Padilla Ponce 
Pam Santacroce 
Bob Shepherd 
Helen Shepherd 
Ginny Solari Mazry 
Rachael Spencer 
Rachel Wedeen 
Theo Wierdsma 
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 
 
SCHOLARSHIP 
Chair: Rachael Spencer 
Diane C. Craddock 
Ofelia Garcia 
Edda W. Tusinac 
College Advisor: 
   Tootie Tzimbal 
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 
 
WOMEN'S EDUCATIONAL 
SUCCESS (WES)  
Co-chairs: 
   Mary Anne Carson 
   Carolyn Mecozzi 
Robin Adkins 
Pat Alvarez 
Pat Barton 
Lindy Bixby 
Rhonda Bonett 
Sue Broadston 
Mary Culley 
Kimberley Dawn 
Julie Hanks 
Diana Hayden 
Leola Lapides 
Nancy Machado 
Mara Paladrani 
Tonee Picard 
Patty Quillin 
Cathy Richards-Bradley 
Mary Spire 
Teresa Thomae 
Karri White 
Donna Ziel 
 
WES Advisors: 
   Marcy Alancraig 
   Jenna Becker 
   Rosemary Brogan 
   Sue Bruckner 
   Lori Chavez 

   Caryn Crawford 
   Olga Diaz 
   Mario Garcia 
   Ofelia Garcia 
   Irma Gil 
   Holly Goodman 
   Jay Jackson 
   Teresa Kidwiler 
   Elissa Kurk 
   Diego Navarro 
   Beth Regardz 
   Ana Rodriguez 
   Gabriela Rodriguez 
   Barbara Schultz-Perez 
   Sue Slater 
   Nancy Spangler 
   Tasha Sturm 
   Laura Thurman 
   Marilyn Zanetti 
 
WES Emeriti: 
   Peggy Downes Baskin 
   Rachael Spencer 
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 

48


	Fin min 1.5.17.pdf
	Nancy Machado

	2017 03 30 Finance Agenda - page 1.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	DATE: March 20, 2017





